
MINUTES 
                   

   
RANDOLPH COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 

  
   

June 4, 2002 
  

 
The Randolph County Planning Board met at 6:30 p.m. on Tuesday, June 4, 2002, in the

Commissioners’ Meeting Room, Randolph County Office Building, 725 McDowell Road, Asheboro,
North Carolina. 
  
1.         Chairman Maxton McDowell called to order the Randolph County Planning Board Meeting a t

6:30 p.m. 
  
2.         Hal Johnson, Planning Director, called roll of the members: Maxton McDowell, Chairman,

present; Bill Dorsett, Vice Chairm an, present; Lynden Craven, pr esent; Al Morton, present; Phil
Ridge, present; Larry Brown, present; and Chris McLeod, present. 

  
3.         Johnson said the minutes in May didn’t mention th at the Planning Board had given Samuel Hun t

the opportunity during that  meeting to reduce the number of proposed lots and increase the
housing size proposed.  Hunt declined to cha nge his request as proposed.  Johnson said the 
minutes are a summary, but he felt that point should be noted. 

  
Craven made the motion, seconded by Morton, to approve the minutes of the Randolph County 
Planning Board meeting of May 7, 2002.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  
4.         REQUESTS FOR PROPERTY REZONING: 
  

A.        CARMON PETERSON, Archdale, North Carolina, is requesting that 1.00 acre located at
7970 US Hwy 311 North, New Market Town ship, Randleman Lake Watershed, be
rezoned from Residential Restri cted to Highway Commercial/Conditional Use.  Parcel ID 
# 7737400291.  The proposed Conditional Use Zoni ng District would specifically allow
auto sales at Corvette Limited. 

  
Johnson gave a review of the request and explained that the current business located on
the property is a non-conforming use that has been in opera tion for many years (prior to
County Zoning). 

  
The Technical Review Committee met and reviewed this rezoning request.  Peterson 
has owned and operated Corvettes Unlimited at this location since prior to
Countywide Zoning.  He now wishes to obtain a dealer’s license.  This would have no 
additional impact on the community; therefore, the Technical Review Committee
recommends this request be approved. 

  
Peterson explained that he has operated this bus iness for over 30 years.  His dealer’s 
license expired in 2000 but he wants to renew his license. 

  
There was no one present in opposition to this request. 

  
Brown made the motion, seconded by McLeod, to recommend to the Commissioners that 
this request for rezoning be approved.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  

Page 1 of 9Planning Board Minutes - 06/04/2002



B.        MICHELLE MCDOWELL, Asheboro, North Carolina, is  requesting that 10.01 acres
located on Scott McDowell Drive, Union Town ship, be rezoned from RA to RLOM-CU.  
Parcel ID # 7624574800.  The proposed C onditional Use Zoning District woul d
specifically allow the division of an existing 10-acre subdivision tract into 2 lots. 
  
Johnson reviewed this request and explained that this would be a division of property
among family members.  Johnson explained that the Technical Review Committee
met following the Neighborhood Information Meeting and found that the proposal
was in compliance with standards outlined in the new Growth Management Plan
adopted by the Board of County Commissioners on February 4, 2002.  The Technical 
Review Committee recommends to the County Planning Board that this request be
approved. 

  
Examples of some Growth Management Policies that the Technical Review
Committee found supporting this recommendation are: 

  
Policy 6.5       The protection of viable rural neighborhoods should be encouraged by

compatible residential development to insure the continued existence
as a major housing source and as a reflection of the long-term quality 
of life in Randolph County. 

  
Policy 6.23     The County should encourage the use of rural lot subdivision designs

where the size of the lot allows for open space and groundwater
recharge areas preserved by careful siting of the principal residence
and accessory uses as noted through subdivision plat notations and
related deed restrictions. 

  
McDowell was present and explained her plans to move her uncle  to North Carolina to be
close to her family.  McDowell said that they participate in maintaining the private road.  
McDowell said that they plan to locate a modular home on the proposed lot. 

  
Patrick McDowell was present and explained that he is the uncle that would like to move
close to his family. 

  
Chris Westall, 6486 Scott McDowell Drive, said th at he and all the neighbors do suppor t
this request. 

  
Ms. Ramirez, 6306 Scott McDowell Drive, said that she also supports this request. 

  
There was no one present in opposition to this request. 

  
Craven made the motion, seconded by Morton, to recommend to the Commissioners that 
this request be approved.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  
C.        CARL & WANDA LAMBETH, Trinity, North Carolina, ar e requesting that 10.03 acres

located on Finch Farm Road, Lake Reese Watershed, Tabernacle Township, be rezone d
from RA to CVOE-CU.  Parcel ID # 6794647451.  The proposed Conditional Use Zoning 
District would specifically al low a redivision of Lot # 6, Pallie Ferree Subdivision, into 3
lots for site-built homes only. 
  
Johnson reviewed the request and said the Technical Review Committee met

Page 2 of 9Planning Board Minutes - 06/04/2002



following the Neighborhood Information Meeting and found that the proposal was in
compliance with standards outlined in the new Growth Management Plan adopted
by the Board of County Commissioners on February 4, 2002.  The Technical Review 
Committee recommended to the County Planning Board that this request be approved. 

  
Examples of some Growth Management Policies that the Technical Review
Committee found supporting this recommendation are: 

  
Policy 6.13    Conventional Residential subdivisions are anticipated of similar housing

characteristics to the community. 
  

Policy 6.14     Residential subdivisions should, in order to promote efficiencies in the
delivery of urban services, be encouraged to develop in a fashion which
minimizes “leap frog” development (i.e. leaving large vacant areas 
between developments). 

  
Max Lambeth, 2763 Finch Farm Road, said that he has purchased the property to build a
house for his son, one for his daughter, and one for himself.  Lambeth said that he woul d 
restrict the homes to a minimum of 1800 sq. ft. in his private deed restrictions. 

  
There was no one present in opposition to this request. 

  
Craven made the motion, seconded by McLeod, to recommend to the Commissioners that 
this request be approved.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  
D.        DAVID SCOTT NELSON, Greensboro, North Carolina, is requesting that 39.38 acres

located on Mamie May Road, Providence Townsh ip, be rezoned from RA to RLOE-CU.  
Parcel ID # 7785673186.  The proposed C onditional Use Zoning District woul d
specifically allow the development of a 10-lot subdivision for site- built homes only with a 
minimum of 1,600 sq. ft. 

  
Johnson reviewed the request and explained that  this request came before the Board in
June 2000 for 39 lots with an average of 1 acre per lot.  Johnson said that due to density 
the Commissioners denied that request.  Since that time, the Commissioners have adopted 
a County Growth Management Plan.  Johnson briefly described the plan and discussed the
Rural Growth Area which in cludes this property.  Johnson said that the minimum house 
size of 1600 sq. ft. is a condition that the developer is asking to be placed on this property.  
Johnson explained that the Technical Review Committee met following the
Neighborhood Information Meeting and found that the proposal was in compliance
with standards outlined in the new Growth Management Plan adopted by the Board
of County Commissioners on February 4, 2002.  The Technical Review Committee 
recommends to the County Planning Board that this request be approved. 

  
Examples of some Growth Management Policies that the Technical Review
Committee found supporting this recommendation are: 

  
Policy 6.5      The protection of viable rural neighborhoods should be encouraged by

compatible residential development to insure the continued existence
as a major housing source and as a reflection of the long-term quality 
of life in Randolph County. 

  

Page 3 of 9Planning Board Minutes - 06/04/2002



Policy 6.22      New driveway connections should be designed in a way to minimize
new locations on existing public roads. 

  
Policy 6.23      The County should encourage the use of rural lot subdivision designs

where the size of the lot allows for open space and groundwater
recharge areas preserved by careful siting of the principal residence
and accessory uses as noted through subdivision plat notations and
related deed restrictions. 

  
Jerry King, Surveyor, said that the average lot size will be 3.99 acres and preliminary soil
evaluations appear to be good.  King said that Nelson’s restrictions are for 1500 sq. ft. (not 
1600 sq. ft.) for a single-level home and 1800 sq. ft. for a mult i-level home.   King said 
that the property owner realizes that the lots could not be resubdivided to create small
building lots.  King said that the property owner plans to build on tract 6 (12.17 acres).  
King said that the property owner currently lives on an adjoining tract in a 1550-sq.-ft. 
site-built home. 
  
Scott Nelson, property owner, said that  he does plan to sell hi s current home and build on
the back tract.  

  
Louise Pugh Corder, 2713 Bruce Pugh Road, said that ju st because we have a plan the
County Planning Board should not rubber stamp every new development.  Corder said that 
this is not in char acter with the community.  Corder said that  the road is not adequate to 
support the additional traffic a nd has several curves.  Corder said there have been 
numerous accidents on this road.  Corder said that the traffic count on the road is 180 cars
daily, 600 cars daily on Bruce Pugh Road, a nd 1900 cars daily on Old Liberty Road.  
Corder said these counts were made by NCDOT in 1999.  Corder said there have been two 
serious wrecks at the intersection of Mamie May and Bruce Pugh Road.  Corder said that a 
teacher from the school was in a serious wreck in this area also.  Corder described several 
other incidents that occurred in this area.  Corder said that she didn’t feel that the 
development would be in a safe place for 10 more hom es.  Corder said she has five
grandchildren that live on Ma mie May Road, and she is very concerned for their safety.  
Corder said she felt the number of lots s hould be much reduced.  Corder said she didn’ t 
feel the proposed restrictive covenants could be enforced.  Corder expressed concern fo r 
tract #6 possibly being re-divided.  Corder said that Nelson has cutoff 3 other tracts before
this proposed development.  Corder asked the Board to not only be concerned for the
County’s tax revenues and the developer’s monetary gain but also to consider the residents 
in the area. 

  
Craven asked Corder what she would li ke to see on this 40 acres.  Corder answered that 
she would like to see half this  many lots.  Corder said that  she isn’t concerned with the 
type of housing but rather th e density.  Corder said she would rather see the three ol d 
mobile homes that exist on the property now remain. 

  
Craven explained that the Board has no control over the number of vehi cles that use the
roads and has no control over the number of accidents that occur. 

  
Leo Corder, 2713 Bruce Pugh Road, asked what happened to preserving the rural
Randolph County.  Corder said that he t hought the Growth Mana gement Plan was to
preserve the rural environment, but he is disappointed.  Corder said that there are currently 
3 wells and 3 septic tanks on the property, and now he wa nts 10 more wells and 10 more

Page 4 of 9Planning Board Minutes - 06/04/2002



septic tanks.  Corder said that a septic ta nk is the most dangerous type of pollution.  
Corder said that he has one house here for sale, one vacant lot for sale, and is proposing 10
more lots and reserving 12 acres in the back.  Corder said he felt Nelson is only concerned 
about the money.  Corder said that the Co mmissioners have already turned him down
twice and he hopes they will ag ain.  Corder said he didn’t f eel they would get satisfaction 
from the Planning Board.  Corder said there is a limit to th e number of well s that can be
drilled in any area, and the County won’t run water lines out to this area.  Corder sai d 
Nelson only plans to make a bunch of money here and then leave. 

  
Dorsett asked Nelson his plans for the existing m obile homes.  Nelson said that they will
be removed. 

  
Johnson said that the County regularly sees deed restrictions.  Johnson said that they are
not enforceable by the County, but  they do provide an added m easure of protection to the
property owner.  Johnson said that the 12-acr e lot could not be subdivided.  Johnson said 
that if a developer places a more restrictive covenant on property than the Zoning, it would
supersede the Zoning regulation.  Johnson said he felt these were good deed restrictions
that address some issues that Zoning could not. 

  
Morton made the motion, seconded by Brown, to recommend to the Commissioners tha t 
this request be approved as recommended by the Techni cal Review Committee .  The 
motion passed unanimously. 

  
E.        THOMAS CLAYTON, McLeansville, North Carolina , is requesting that 46.00 acres

located on Low Bridge Road, Sandy Creek Wat ershed, Columbia Township, be rezone d
from RA to RLOR-CU.  Parcel ID # 8704106837.  The proposed Conditional Use Zoning 
District would specifically allo w a 9-lot subdivision for site- built homes, modular homes 
and Class-A double-wide mobile homes on permanent masonry foundation. 
  
Johnson said the Technical Review Committee met following the Neighborhood
Information Meeting and found that the proposal was in compliance with standards
outlined in the new Growth Management Plan adopted by the Board of County
Commissioners on February 4, 2002.  The Technical Review Committee recommends 
to the County Planning Board that this request be approved. 

  
Examples of some Growth Management Policies that the Technical Review
Committee found supporting this recommendation are: 

  
Policy 6.5       The protection of viable rural neighborhoods should be encouraged by

compatible residential development to insure the continued existence
as a major housing source and as a reflection of the long-term quality 
of life in Randolph County. 

  
Policy 6.23      The County should encourage the use of rural lot subdivision designs 

where the size of the lot allows for open space and groundwater 
recharge areas preserved by careful siting of the principal residence 
and accessory uses as noted through subdivision plat notations and 
related deed restrictions. 

  
Policy 7.6       Stormwater impact should be minimized by designing new

development in a manner that minimizes concentrated stormwater

Page 5 of 9Planning Board Minutes - 06/04/2002

8/10/2012



flow through maximizing the length of stormwater sheet flow through vegetated
buffer areas. 

  
Policy 8.8       The County should seek land use decisions that continue to provide

locations for affordable housing while maintaining a choice in
compatible housing types in communities within the county. 

  
Clayton was present and said that he purchased the property in 1979.  Clayton said that he 
plans to restrict the property against single-wide mobile homes.   

  
Johnson said that the main concern heard at  the Neighborhood Information Meeting was
for the dirt road and when it might be paved.   Johnson said that the Mayor of Ramseur did 
call to express his concern that too many  manufactured homes were in the area. 

  
McDowell commented that additional homes on a di rt road would make that road highe r
priority for paving. 

  
There was no one present in opposition to this request. 

  
Johnson said that Clayton has tried to be envi ronmentally sensitive to the area and protect
the flood zone on the property.   

  
Craven made the motion, seconded by Dorsett, to recommend to the Commissioners tha t 
this request be approved.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  
F.        ROBBIE SIKES, Trinity, North Carolina, is reques ting that 42.44 acres located on Loflin

Hill Road, Tabernacle Township, be rezone d from RA to RLOM -CU.  Parcel ID # 
6781987558.  The proposed Conditional Use Zoning Di strict would specifically allow an
8-lot subdivision for Class-B single-wide mobile homes.  Property Owners: Henry an d 
Thelma Royals. 

  
Johnson reviewed this request and said the Technical Review Committee met
following the Neighborhood Information Meeting and found that the proposal was in
compliance with standards outlined in the new Growth Management Plan adopted
by the Board of County Commissioners on February 4, 2002.  The Technical Review 
Committee recommends to the County Planning Board that this request be approved
with the condition that a natural uncut buffer be maintained along Loflin Hill Road and
the southern property line. 

  
Examples of some Growth Management Policies that the Technical Review
Committee found supporting this recommendation are: 

  
Policy 6.18     The County should minimize site disturbance and erosion through

retention of existing vegetation and avoiding development of steep
slopes. 

  
Policy 6.23      The County should encourage the use of rural lot subdivision designs

where the size of the lot allows for open space and groundwater
recharge areas preserved by careful siting of the principal residence
and accessory uses as noted through subdivision plat notations and
related deed restrictions. 

Page 6 of 9Planning Board Minutes - 06/04/2002



  
Policy 8.8       The County should seek land use decisions that continue to provide

locations for affordable housing while maintaining a choice in
compatible housing types in communities within the county. 

  
Eric Hedrick, 3246 Sumner Road, Trinity, said that most of the homes will be set bac k
over 100 ft. from the road.  Hedrick said that the lots have perked at the front and the
homes will be set behind the sept ic tanks.  Hedrick said that a soil scientist (Heath Ward) 
has checked the soils.  Johnson asked Hedric k if there had been any testing for othe r
materials on this property.  Hedrick said that a mining comp any tested the property fo r
gold years ago.  Hedrick said that they are proposing single-wide mobile homes because of 
the number of mobile homes existing on this ro ad in the large mobile home parks at the
beginning of the road..  Hedrick said that he would restrict the mobile homes to only new
homes and they must sow the yards.   

  
Ridge said he felt that Hedrick should draw up a better set of restrictions before presenting
the request to the Commissioners. 

  
Christy Reece, 1502 Loflin Hill Road, said that ther e is an arsenic investigation being
done on this road by the EPA.  Reece said that there is an ongoing investigation by the
EPA and said there have been several types of tests.  She presented a report from the 
EPA.  The testing started in August 2000.  Reece said that she felt that he shouldn’t be 
allowed to develop the property until it has been deemed safe by the EPA.  Reece said that 
she was told by the EPA that any additional residential development in this area shoul d
cease until it is deemed s afe.  Reece discussed how alar med she was by the levels o f
arsenic that have been discove red.  Reece said there were more samples taken in A pril
2002 (approximately 20 homes).  Reece said that they are very concerned and this
situation should be strongly considered.  Morton asked if there was any other reason she 
would be against this request.  Reece said that she would like to see at least a double-wide 
mobile home or larger.  Reece said  that if this is approved she would like to see this
arsenic problem taken s eriously.  Reece s aid they would al so like to see a 50 ft. buffe r
placed on this property line. 

  
There were 4 people present in opposition to this request. 

  
Jim Wallace, Loflin Hill Road, said that he owns 130 acres on this  road.  Wallace said he 
would like to see a buffer zone  of 50 ft. along the southern pr operty line.  Wallace said he 
felt the government should come in and chec k the property before any development takes
place.  Wallace talked about the gold on his property and the old mines in the area. 

  
Dawn Shipman, 1641 Loflin Hill Road, said that it  was upsetting to her that no one from
the government has told them they could have arsenic on their land.  Shipman said that she 
is very concerned for her family, and this problem needs to be fixed. 

  
Dorsett said that this  reminds him of the  foam company problem that  occurred in the
northwest corner of the county.  Dorsett said that he didn’t  feel there was anything the 
Board could do to stop this development.  Morton said he didn’t think the Health 
Department would issue sept ic tank permits for developm ent in an area that wa s
hazardous.  Johnson said that his staff woul d look into this issue.  Johnson said that 
neither the Health Departme nt nor the EPA has had any contact with the Planning
Department about this problem.  Johnson said he felt this shoul d be noted by this Boar d 

Page 7 of 9Planning Board Minutes - 06/04/2002



and he would pursue this issue. 
  

Craven made the motion to re commend to th e Commissioners that this request be
approved with the condition of a 50 ft. no-cut buffer along the southern property line and 
more specific proposed deed restrictions  prior to the Comm issioners meeting.  Brown
seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  
5.         SWEARING IN OF THE WITNESSES: 
  

“Do you swear or affirm th at the information you ar e about to give is th e truth, the whole truth,
and nothing but the truth, so help you God?” 

  
4 people took this Oath. 

  
6.         SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUESTS: 
  

A.        EVELINA PRICE & VICTORIA SMITH, Trinity, North Carolina, are requesting a 
Special Use Permit to allow a Planned Rural De velopment to allow a 3 rd residence to be 
located at 2820 Refuge Church Road on 5.00 acres, Tabernacle Township, Lake Reese
Watershed, Zoning District RA, Parcel ID # 6795366987. 

  
Charles Smith said that they  want to place a thir d residence on the property for his son.  
Smith said that they have lived here since 1993 and he doe s most of the maintenance on
the road.  Smith presented the Board with a petition of the neighbors that are not oppose d
to this development.  Smith said that this would be a family si tuation and would not be
rented.  Dorsett asked Smith if he woul d be asking for any additi onal homes in the future
and Smith answered no. 

  
There was no one present in opposition to this request. 

  
Craven said if this was approved he would like to  see the restriction that it not be used for
rental purposes.  Craven made the motion, seconded by Ridge, to approve this request.  
The motion passed with a 6 to 1 vote, Dorsett voted against the motion. 

  
B.         JASON & MARTICA CRAVEN, Ramseur, North Carolina, is requesting a Special Use

Permit to allow a seamless gut tering business in a 60 x 60 bui lding to be located on Joel
Jessup Road on 52.69 acres, Brower Townshi p, Zoning District RA, Parcel ID #
8617244372. 

  
Craven was present and explained his intentions to construc t a metal building for his
small business. Craven said he plans to c onstruct his house on the property next spring.  
Craven said he only has one employee, and he  expects materials to be delivered once a
week to the building.   

  
There was no one present in opposition to this request. 

  
Brown made the motion, seconded by McLeod, to approve this request.  The motion 
passed unanimously. 

  
7.         The meeting adjourned at 8:59 p.m.  There were 34 citizens present for this meeting. 
  

Page 8 of 9Planning Board Minutes - 06/04/2002



______________________________________________________________________________ 
NORTH CAROLINA 
RANDOLPH COUNTY 

________________________________ 
Planning Director 
  
__________________________________                ___________________________________ 
Date                                                                            Clerk/Secretary 

Page 9 of 9Planning Board Minutes - 06/04/2002


